
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

AGENDA 
Board of Directors Meeting 
June 15, 2023 @ 9:15 AM 

1333 Park Avenue, Garden Room 
Emeryville, CA 94608 

Hybrid Zoom Link: Meeting ID: 845 2232 8312 

Chair 
Bobby Lee, At-Large 
Residential Member 

Vice Chair 
Andrew Allen 
At-Large Business 
Member 

Secretary 
Besty Cooley, At-Large 
Residential Member 

Treasurer 
Geoffrey Sears 
Wareham 
Development 

Directors 
Peter Schreiber 
Pixar 

Colin Osborne 
At-Large Business 
Member 

Kassandra Kappelos 
Public Market 

Izamar Hook 
CenterCal/Bay Street 

1. Call to Order

2. Public Comment

3. Approval of the Minutes of the May 18, 2023 Annual Membership Mee�ng
(Attachment, Page 2)

4. Approval of the Minutes of the May 18, 2023 Board of Directors Mee�ng
(Attachment, Page 3)

5. Execu�ve Directors Report
A. Emery Go-Round Ridership & Performance (Atachment, Page 6)

B. Ridership Audit Findings (Atachment, Page 9)

6. Business Items
A. Review and Consider Approval of Financial Investment Plan (Atachment, 

Page 12)

B. Review and Consider Approval of Preliminary Budget & PBID Levy 
Recommenda�on to City Council (Atachment, Page 23)

C. Review and Consider Approval of Amendment 2 to Professional Services 
Agreement with City of Emeryville for a 1-year extensions for 8 to Go 
Paratransit Services (Atachment, Page 25)

D. Review Recommenda�on and Consider Approval to Replace
Syncroma�cs (Atachment, Page 27)

E. Review Shutle Opera�ons Contract Recommenda�ons (Atachment, 
Page 31)

F. Review and Consider Approval of Vehicle Re�rement and Spare Part
U�liza�on Recommenda�on (Atachment, Page 32)

7. Confirm date of Next Mee�ng – July 20, 2023

8. Adjournment

PAGE 1

https://www.google.com/url?q=https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84522328312?pwd%3DTVNKbEVkdjBLcUZCSmgyTVB4QWw1QT09&sa=D&source=calendar&ust=1686795874957327&usg=AOvVaw0_MNhIl-935oQ8rbgCScFu


EMERYVILLE TRANSPORATATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 
ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

Board of Directors Annual Membership Meeting 
May 18, 2023 

LOCATION:  1333 PARK AVENUE, GARDEN ROOM 
EMERYVILLE, CA  94608 

Directors Present: Bobby Lee, Chair 
Betsy Cooley, Secretary 
Peter Schreiber, Director 
Colin Osbourne, Director 
Izamar Hook, Director 
Kassandra Kappelos, Director  

Others Present:  Pedro Jimenez, Assistant City Manager 
Daniel Oliver, ALTRANS 
Aaron Matthews, ALTRANS 
Andrew Ridley, ALTRANS 
Stephen Blaylock, ALTRANS 
Janet Shipp, ALTRANS 

1. Call to Order
Bobby Lee called the Board of Director’s New Membership meeting to order at 9:05 AM

2. Public Comment
No public comments.

3. Designation of Corporate Director
Daniel welcomed Izamar Hook as a Corporate Director on behalf of Bay Street.

4. Election of Employer Member
No ballots were received.

5. Presentation of Emery Go-Round Updates
Daniel presented Article III on Membership.  We currently have 8 directors so quorum is now 5.
Daniel stated that the 3 objectives for 2023 are to pursue grant opportunities for funding as well
as infrastructure changes, such as clean air vehicles, if that’s the way the board wants to
proceed.  The 2 other objectives would be to fill more BOD seats and begin promotion of services
and developing a social media strategy.

6. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at approx. 9:22am

PAGE 2



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORATATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 
ACTION SUMMARY MINUTES 

Board of Directors Meeting 
May 18, 2023 

LOCATION:  1333 PARK AVENUE, GARDEN ROOM 
EMERYVILLE, CA  94608 

Directors Present: Bobby Lee, Chair 
Betsy Cooley, Secretary 
Peter Schreiber, Director 
Colin Osbourne, Director 
Izamar Hook, Director 
Kassandra Kappelos, Director  

Others Present:  Pedro Jimenez, Assistant City Manager 
Daniel Oliver, ALTRANS 
Aaron Matthews, ALTRANS 
Andrew Ridley, ALTRANS 
Stephen Blaylock, ALTRANS 
Janet Shipp, ALTRANS 

1. Call to Order
Bobby Lee called the Board of Director’s meeting to order at 9:22 AM

2. Public Comment
No comments from the public but Betsy commented she participated in a Webinar on 5/17 on
transit in the bay area.  Bobby commented that it would be advantageous for Directors to let
others know of similar webinars that they hear about regarding bay area transit to stay up to
date on what is happening with the other systems since Emery Go Round is the biggest shuttle
service in and out of MacArthur.

3. Approval of the Minutes of the April 20th, 2023 Board of Directors Meeting
Peter Schreiber motioned for approval of the meeting minutes of the April 20th, 2023 Board of
Directors meeting.  Betsy Cooley seconded the motion.

This item was approved by a unanimous vote.

Yes: 6
No: 0
Abstain: 0

4. Executive Directors Report
A. Ridership Reporting

Trending positively.  Weekend ridership is about 1/3 of pre-Covid %.  Combined is closer
to 40%

I. Local transit ridership recovery

PAGE 3



BART provided data broken down by month and weekday ridership is pretty 
comparable, in between 35-40%.  Looking at weekend the last few months EGR 
is ahead of BART in terms of ridership recovery.  AC Transit did not have data 
broken down by month or by Covid recovery.  Would be nice to get more 
granular data from AC Transit. 

II. Granular ridership audit update
Started on Monday, 5/15, to get drivers or driver manager to get stop by stop
and time by time passenger counts for the entire week to receive granular data
on how the system is being used and compare that to trends Syncromatics is
reporting.

B. On-Time Performance Reporting
Similar to last month. Looking into different providers so GPS signal won’t get 
lost on arrivals and departures at MacArthur Bart. 

5. Business Items
A. Review of 1st Quarter Financial Report

Currently have received to date 50% of the PBID and the City Contribution.  2nd

installment was sent out at the beginning of the month.  Billed revenue is at 100%.  
Quarterra is at 26% so that is on par with the quarter financial. Expenditures: No vehicles 
have been leased yet. There was $500,000 budgeted in case we did need to lease 
vehicles.  We haven’t done that.   Four vehicles final payment was paid this month. 
Maintenance and Operations are on par for the quarter.  Everything from an accrual 
standpoint is as expected.  We have not received any revenue for WBS.  The check has 
been sent for these invoices and should be received next week.  Waiting on revenue for 
Quarterra.  Invoices had to wait on being sent as the GBS invoice had not been received. 

B. Review and Consider Approval to close the Summit Bank Account
Bobby motioned to close the Summit Bank Account, transfer these funds to Bank of
America, place in a 7-month CD account, and allow Daniel and a subcommittee to
investigate how to use the money after the 7-month CD has matured.

Bobby motioned for approval.  Kassandra Kappelos seconded the motion.

Yes: 6
No: 0
Abstain: 0

C. Review and Consider Approval to invest a portion of the Savings Account
The subject of taking $2M to invest in a CD will be revisited at the next meeting.
ALTRANS will provide a table showing the costs of what the brokerage fees will be and
any penalties and risk costs associated with the decision to see a full comparison.

D. Consider Rebidding or Extending Shuttle Operations and Maintenance
MV’s current contract is set to expire 12/31/23.  A decision needs to be made if there will
be an extension for MV’s contract or go out to rebid. Daniel has no issue with extending

PAGE 4



MV’s contract unless the board wants to go out to bid for better pricing.  The Board is in 
agreement with moving forward with an RFI. 

E. Review Syncromatics Replacement Options
Daniel has reached out to TripShot and Swiftly which are the top choices.  There are 2
considerations that need to be discussed.  1)  Rider app (TripShot has an app and Swiftly
does not have an app – needs to be pushed to Transit or Google apps) 2) Price point.
TripShot costs twice as much as Swiftly.  TripShot has all the features that Swiftly has but
has its own app.  Bobby would like to see a demo of all of them.  Daniel will continue to
gather as much information as possible.

F. Vehicle Retirement
Typically, vehicles are retired after 7 years. There are 5 shuttles that have high mileage
and high maintenance costs that have been identified by MV to possibly be retired.
Bobby is curious about the market value of these shuttles along with all other options.
Daniel will look into potential sales and transmission rebuild policies.

G. Consider Hybrid Board Meetings
There is an option for hybrid board meetings.  Quorum needs to be in person.  Board
members can only do this 2 times a year.  We would need to know ahead of time who
will not be in person.  There needs to be a valid reason that Bobby has to approve.

6. Confirm Date of Next Meeting
The meeting date was confirmed for June 15th, 2023 at 9:15am

7. Adjournment
The meeting adjourned at approx. 11:06am

PAGE 5



2019-2023 ANNUAL RIDERSHIP COMPARISON

YEAR TO DATE

3,565 

3,339 

3,556 3,593 

3,751 
3,622 

3,870 

4,084 4,060 
3,974 

3,552 

3,119 

3,548 
3,445 

1,673 

413 398 

472 

552 

580 572 
621 644 

622 
562 

614 667 

716 
696 

812 

886 

909 

950 

992 
1,052 

981 

836
995

1073
1155 1171 1210

1131
1211

1281
1240 1271

1157
1157 1259

1352 1363

1523

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

A
v

e
ra

g
e

 D
a

ily
 P

a
ss

e
n

g
e

r 
B

o
a

rd
in

g
s

SERVICE MONTH

Average Daily Passenger Boardings

Combined Ridership

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

4,603 

4,318 

4,815 

4,579 

4,786 
4,914 4,895 

5,244 
5,085 

4,958 

4,662 

4,066 

4,468 
4,601 

2,161 

483 497 566 
643 701 671 738 793 723 692 728 775 823 869 

955 
1,029 1,088 1,135 

1,223 1,251 
1,141 

1,007 

1,201 
1,282 

1360
1446 1437 1385 1404

1552 1549 1529
13891,387 

1,561 1,611 1,682 
1,828 

 -

 500

 1,000

 1,500

 2,000

 2,500

 3,000

 3,500

 4,000

 4,500

 5,000

 5,500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 D

a
ily

 P
a

ss
e

n
g

e
r 

B
o

a
rd

in
g

s

SERVICE MONTH

Average Daily Ridership

Weekday

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

710 

1,014 

911 
882 

904 

1,039 1,050 

1,248 

1,495 

1,144 

1,086 

911 

1,017 
1,005 

480 

191 
198 

212 

251 326 
314 

335 313 

345 

302 
343 356 

378 
351 

418 491 473 
466 

506 532 

454 

436 

506 
472 

617

529

586 598

657

568
590 593

522526 544

608

675 686

 -

 250

 500

 750

 1,000

 1,250

 1,500

 1,750

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 D

a
ily

 P
a

ss
e

n
g

e
r 

B
o

a
rd

in
g

s

SERVICE MONTH

Average Daily Ridership

Weekend

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

PAGE 6



ANNUAL RIDERSHIP SUMMARY (YTD)/COMPARISON

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Total to Date

Total Monthly Weekday Ridership 30,511 29,651       37,053     33,642       40,205       171,062 

# of Operating Days 22 19 23 20 22 106 

Average Daily Ridership 1387 1561 1611 1682 1828 1,614 

% Increase/Decrease from Prior Month 0% 13% 3% 4% 9%

% Increase/Decrease from Prior Year 38% 30% 26% 24% 26%
% of Pre COVID Baseline 30% 36% 33% 37% 38%

2019 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Total

Total Monthly Ridership 101,269 82,033       101,123   100,741     105,288     1,206,173 

# of Operating Days 22 19 21 22 22 254 

Average Daily Ridership 4603 4318 4815 4579 4786 4,749 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Total to Date

Total Monthly Weekend Ridership 4209 4351 4860 6074 5490 24984

# of Operating Days 8 8 8 9 8 41

Average Daily Ridership 526 544 608 675 686 609

% Increase/Decrease from Prior Month 1% 3% 12% 11% 2%

% Increase/Decrease from Prior Year 21% 7% 29% 9% 30%
% of Pre COVID Baseline 74% 54% 67% 77% 76%

2019 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Total

Total Monthly Ridership 5681 8,112         9,110      7,055         7,230         106,301 

# of Operating Days 8 8 10 8 8 103 

Average Daily Ridership 710 1014 911 882 904 1,032 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Total to Date

Total Monthly Ridership 34,720 34,002       41,913     39,536 45695 195,866 

# of Operating Days 30 27 31 29 30 147 

Average Daily Ridership 1,157 1,259         1,352      1,363         1,523         1,332 

% Increase/Decrease from Prior Month 0% 9% 7% 1% 12%

% Increase/Decrease from Prior Year 38% 27% 26% 18% 30%
% of Pre COVID Baseline 32% 38% 38% 38% 41%

2019 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Total

Total Monthly Ridership 106,950 90,145       110,233   107,796     112,518     1,312,474 

# of Operating Days 30 27 31 30 30 357

Average Daily Ridership 3,565 3,339         3,556      3,593         3,751         3,676 

COMBINED RIDERSHIP

WEEKEND RIDERSHIP

WEEKDAY RIDERSHIP

PAGE 7



SUMMARY: Emery-Go-Round  - Schedule Adherence Report 5/1/2023 - 5/31/2023

Route Overall Performance

Overall Performance

Page 3 Generated on 6/2/2023
PAGE 8



Hollis Ridership Audit
May 24 - June 1, 2024

1929

487

227
98

230 185

547

291
164

311

913

467

194

752

244
133

249 296

8

1818

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

Hollis Ridership by Stop

92
138

224

306

717

250

532

672

106

222

290

140
184

248

66

228

354

128

294

592

334

918

646

204

684

334

120

262

152

22
74

10
0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

5:
30

6:
00

6:
30

7:
00

7:
30

8:
00

8:
30

9:
00

9:
30

10
:0

0
10

:3
0

11
:0

0
11

:3
0

12
:0

0
12

:3
0

13
:0

0
13

:3
0

14
:0

0
14

:3
0

15
:0

0
15

:3
0

16
:0

0
16

:3
0

17
:0

0
17

:3
0

18
:0

0
18

:3
0

19
:0

0
19

:3
0

20
:0

0
20

:3
0

21
:0

0

Hollis Ridership by Time

PAGE 9



Shellmound/Powell Ridership Audit
May 24 - June 1, 2024

2075

718

257
170

462
599

458

252 182
64

222
301

65 90

331 301 244

476

748

522
432

192 258

668

2015

-300

200

700

1200

1700

2200

Weekday Shellmound/Powell by Stop

258

364
408

562

190

308

384

184
242

450

126

330

552

196

318

612

280

462

854

220

904

576

352

822

462

176

576

374

128

252

84 62
34

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

1000

6:
00

6:
30

7:
00

7:
30

8:
00

8:
30

9:
00

9:
30

10
:0

0
10

:3
0

11
:0

0
11

:3
0

12
:0

0
12

:3
0

13
:0

0
13

:3
0

14
:0

0
14

:3
0

15
:0

0
15

:3
0

16
:0

0
16

:3
0

17
:0

0
17

:3
0

18
:0

0
18

:3
0

19
:0

0
19

:3
0

20
:0

0
20

:3
0

21
:0

0
21

:3
0

22
:0

0

Weekday Shellmound/Powell by Time

PAGE 10



Shellmound/Powell Weekend Ridership Audit
May 27 - May 28, 2024

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Weekend Shellmound/Powell Ridership by Stop

Saturday Sunday

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

8:
00

8:
30

9:
00

9:
30

10
:0

0

10
:3

0

11
:0

0

11
:3

0

12
:0

0

12
:3

0

13
:0

0

13
:3

0

14
:0

0

14
:3

0

15
:0

0

15
:3

0

16
:0

0

16
:3

0

17
:0

0

17
:3

0

18
:0

0

18
:3

0

19
:0

0

19
:3

0

20
:0

0

20
:3

0

21
:0

0

21
:3

0

22
:0

0

Weekend Shellmound/Powell Ridership by Time

Saturday Sunday

PAGE 11



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Emeryville TMA Financial Investment Plan 

Informa on 
ALTRANS has developed and esƟmated a 32-month cash flow report through December 2025. This 

report forecasts month-to-month, accrual-based expenses and revenue based on 2 scenarios:  

 A 5% increase in operaƟng expenses with a 3% PBID increase

 A 10% increase in operaƟng expenses with a 3% PBID increase

UƟlizing this cash flow report, which was reviewed and approved by John Tounger, the ETMA’s 

Bookkeeper and Accountant, it was determined that over the next 2 years, the lowest balance the 

EMTA’s savings will reach while maintaining the $135,000 ConƟngency fund and 15% OperaƟng Reserve, 

per ETMA Policy, is approximately $3,292,215.99. 

ALTRANS and John met with a Wealth Management Advisor from Merrill Lynch, the investment 

management branch of Bank of America, to discuss opƟons and recommendaƟons to invest the ETMA’s 

funds in a manner that balances seeking maximum returns with the desired levels of risk and liquidity. 

Op ons 
Throughout the conversaƟons with Merrill Lynch, three primary opƟons were discussed: brokered CD 

(CerƟficate of Deposit) accounts, US Treasuries, and a Preferred Deposit Account. 

CD Account 
A CD is a type of savings account with a fixed interest rate that’s usually higher than a standard savings 

account. Funds invested in CDs are locked for a fixed term, generally ranging from 3 months to 5 years. 

CDs don’t have monthly fees, but most have an early withdrawal penalty. 

Like standard savings accounts, CDs at banks are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corp. (FDIC), 

up to $250,000. Since the majority of the deposit of $2,000,000 wouldn’t be covered by FDIC if it resided 

in one CD account, a brokered CD account is an opƟon which would diversify the funds in $250,000 

increments throughout mulƟple different banks. These investments would be able to be brokered 

through Merrill Lynch, but each bank and term would have to be individually selected. 

US Treasuries 
US Treasuries are US government debt securiƟes in which investors loan the government money to 

finance the operaƟons of the federal government, earning a fixed rate of return. US Treasuries have fixed 

terms ranging from 4 weeks to 10 years. Treasuries can be sold before the maturity date without penalty, 

but the full maturity value would not be realized.   

US Treasuries are not insured by the FDIC but are considered to be the most creditworthy investment 

available because they are backed by the full faith and credit of the US government itself. 

PAGE 12



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Preferred Deposit Account 
Preferred Deposit is a bank deposit soluƟon offered through Merrill Lynch that provides a higher yield 

than standard savings accounts. While the Preferred Deposit accounts have higher yields, the interest 

rate is variable and may change over Ɵme. Funds held in a Preferred Deposit account are easily and 

quickly liquidated without penalty, with funds typically transferred the same day, or following day of the 

request.  

Like standard savings accounts, a Preferred Deposit account is insured by the FDIC up to $250,000. 

Recommenda on 

Recommenda on 1 
It is recommended to invest $2,000,000 from the ETMA’s Savings account into US Treasuries, with funds 

distributed between Treasury Bills and Treasury Notes. These securiƟes would have maturity dates 

ranging from 3 months to 12 months, with the ability to purchase new securiƟes at the end of each 

term. 

Recommenda on 2 
It is recommended to transfer the remainder of the banking funds from a standard business savings 

account through Bank of America with an APY of 0.04% to a Preferred Deposit account through Merrill 

Lynch with an APY of 4.76% (as of June 9, 2023).  

PAGE 13



-10-
11886345.1

Members.  The action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as the unanimous 

vote of the Members or class of Members.  [The use of written ballots collected outside of 

meetings is not acceptable under the Brown Act, which mandates that all decisions be made 

a publicly-noticed meetings.] 

Section 14 Record Date For Meetings 

The record date for purposes of determining the Members entitled to notice, voting rights, 

written ballot rights, or any other right with respect to a meeting of Members or any other lawful 

Membership action, shall be fixed pursuant to Code Section 5611. 

ARTICLE V 

DIRECTORS 

Section 1 Number 

The Board shall consist of at least eight (8) Directors, with the precise number of 

Directors determined by resolution of the Board.   

Section 2 Terms 

Each Director designated by a Corporate Member shall hold office only as long as the 

Member that designated such Director is in good standing with the Corporation, or until the 

Director resigns, is removed or the Corporate Member designates a different Director.  Directors 

designated by Corporate Members who no longer qualify as Corporate Members under Section 

1(1) of Article III, based upon the amount of dues paid to the Corporation, shall serve up until 

the next Annual Membership Meeting.  The determination of which members qualify as 

Corporate Members as set forth in Section 1(1) of Article III, shall be made prior to the Annual 

Membership Meeting, based on the amount of dues billed in the calendar year of the Annual 

Membership Meeting.  Any new Corporate Members shall then designate their Directors, who 

shall serve terms as provided herein.  If a non-Corporate Member designates a Director due to 

the failure of a Corporate Member to designate a Director, pursuant to Article III, Section 1(1), 

that Director shall serve until the Corporate Member designates a Director or until the next 

Annual Membership Meeting, whichever is earlier.   

Each Class B Residential Member Director shall hold office for a term of three (3) years, 

or until he or she resigns or is removed, pursuant to Section 20 of this Article.    

Each elected Director representing the Business Members shall hold office for three (3) 

years or until he or she resigns or is removed, pursuant to Section 20 of this Article.   

Each elected Director representing the Employer Members shall hold office for one (1) 

year or until he or she resigns or is removed, pursuant to Section 20 of this Article. 

Section 3 Powers 

Subject to the provisions and limitations of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit 

PAGE 14

DanielOliver
Highlight



-11- 11886345.1

Corporation Law and any limitations in the Articles and these Bylaws relating to actions required 

or permitted to be taken or approved by the Members, the activities and affairs of the 

Corporation shall be conducted and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the 

direction of the Board.  The Board shall have the power to do the following: 

(1) Appoint and remove, at the pleasure of the Board, all corporate officers,

agents, and employees; prescribe powers and duties for them as are consistent with the law, the 

Articles, and these Bylaws; fix their compensation; and require from them security for faithful 

service;   

(2) Conduct, manage and control the Corporation’s affairs and activities and

make such rules and regulations for this purpose, consistent with law, the Articles, and these By-

Laws, as the Board deems best; 

(3) Change the Principal Office for the transaction of Corporation business

from one location to another within the area surveyed by the Corporation; set Director or Member 

meetings; and adopt, make and use a corporate seal, if any, and alter the form of the corporate 

seal, provided such seal shall at all times comply with the provisions of law; 

(4) Borrow money and incur indebtedness on the Corporation’s behalf, and to

cause to be executed and delivered for the Corporation’s purposes, in the Corporation’s name, 

promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, and other evidences of 

debt and securities; 

(5) Solicit, collect, receive, acquire, hold and invest money and property, both

real and personal, received by gift, contribution, bequest, devise or otherwise; to sell and convert 

property, both real and personal, into cash; and to use the funds of the Corporation and the 

proceeds, income, rents, issues and profits derived from any property of the Corporation for any 

of the purposes for which the Corporation is formed; 

(6) Act as trustee under any trust created to furnish funds for the principal

objectives of the Corporation and receive, hold, administer, and expend funds and property 

subject to such trust; 

(7) Purchase or otherwise acquire, own, hold, sell, assign, transfer or otherwise

dispose of mortgage, pledge or otherwise hypothecate or encumber, and to deal in with shares, 

bonds, notes, debentures or other securities or evidences of indebtedness of any person, firm, 

corporation or association and, while the owner or holder thereof, to exercise all rights, powers 

and privileges of ownership; and 

(8) Enter into, make, perform and carry out contracts for every kind for any

lawful purpose without limit as to amount, with any person, firm, corporation or association, 

municipality, county, parish, state, territory, government (foreign or domestic), or other municipal 

or governmental subdivision. 

Section 4 Duties 

It shall be the duty of the Directors to: 

PAGE 15

DanielOliver
Highlight

DanielOliver
Highlight



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

32-Month Estimated Cash Flow 
Es mated 
Expenses 

Es mated 
Revenue 

Reserves 

Banking 
Balance 

Balance 
minus 

Reserves 

Balance 
A er 

Investment 

10% Op. 
Expense 
Increase 

3% PBID 
Increase 

Con ngency 
+ 15% Op.
Reserve

$2M 
Investment 

May 23 $451,335 $64,006 $909,000 $4,538,030 $3,629,030 $1,629,030 

Jun 23 $392,813 $61,833 $4,201,216 $3,292,216 $1,292,216 

Jul 23 $445,364 $2,563,517 $6,313,536 $5,404,536 $3,404,536 

Aug 23 $408,989 $64,006 $5,962,719 $5,053,719 $3,053,719 

Sep 23 $390,422 $59,659 $5,626,123 $4,717,123 $2,717,123 

Oct 23 $394,779 $61,833 $5,287,343 $4,378,343 $2,378,343 

Nov 23 $383,913 $61,833 $4,959,430 $4,050,430 $2,050,430 

Dec 23 $379,888 $59,659 $4,633,368 $3,724,368 $1,724,368 

Jan 24 $441,178 $70,120 $921,577 $4,255,894 $3,346,894 $1,346,894 

Feb 24 $422,106 $2,635,242 $6,467,345 $5,558,345 $3,558,345 

Mar 24 $427,221 $65,359 $6,099,066 $5,190,066 $3,190,066 

Apr 24 $450,342 $183,100 $5,825,408 $4,916,408 $2,916,408 

May 24 $483,528 $70,120 $5,405,583 $4,496,583 $2,496,583 

Jun 24 $417,685 $62,979 $5,044,461 $4,135,461 $2,135,461 

Jul 24 $490,560 $2,640,002 $7,192,218 $6,283,218 $4,283,218 

Aug 24 $442,845 $67,740 $6,810,696 $5,901,696 $3,901,696 

Sep 24 $428,228 $65,359 $6,441,411 $5,532,411 $3,532,411 

Oct 24 $441,178 $70,120 $6,063,936 $5,154,936 $3,154,936 

Nov 24 $425,059 $65,359 $5,697,820 $4,788,820 $2,788,820 

Dec 24 $433,804 $67,740 $5,325,339 $4,416,339 $2,416,339 

Jan 25 $481,425 $76,845 $984,082 $4,913,701 $4,004,701 $2,004,701 

Feb 25 $449,979 $2,731,608 $7,193,477 $6,284,477 $4,284,477 

Mar 25 $466,088 $71,630 $6,791,960 $5,882,960 $3,882,960 

Apr 25 $491,513 $193,058 $6,486,447 $5,577,447 $3,577,447 

May 25 $520,777 $74,237 $6,032,850 $5,123,850 $3,123,850 

Jun 25 $462,839 $71,630 $5,634,581 $4,725,581 $2,725,581 

Jul 25 $532,289 $2,739,432 $7,839,871 $6,930,871 $4,930,871 

Aug 25 $475,163 $71,630 $7,429,279 $6,520,279 $4,520,279 

Sep 25 $475,299 $74,237 $7,021,159 $6,112,159 $4,112,159 

Oct 25 $481,425 $76,845 $6,609,521 $5,700,521 $3,700,521 

Nov 25 $455,606 $69,022 $6,215,878 $5,306,878 $3,306,878 

Dec 25 $481,425 $76,845 $5,804,240 $4,895,240 $2,895,240 

Lowest es mated 32-month banking balance minus reserves. ($3,262.216) 

PAGE 16



PROPOSAL 

MONTHLY CASH FLOW (USD) 

YEARLY CASH FLOW (USD) 

June 09, 2023

Fixed Income Portfolio Ladder
Prepared for Altrans | Prepared by Paul Kommer

Qty ML# Issuer Coupon
Maturity

Date CCY
Offer
Price

Yield/
Code Call Date

Mod
Dur Moody's S&P

Settlement
Date

Principal
Amount

Accrued
Interest

Total
Amount

507,000 H2ZA0 TREASURY BILL 0.000 09/19/2023 USD 98.640 5.097 /M N 0.267 - - 06/12/2023 500,104.80 0.00 500,104.80

512,000 H2ZA6 TREASURY BILL 0.000 12/07/2023 USD 97.506 5.259 /M N 0.474 - - 06/12/2023 499,231.43 0.00 499,231.43

510,000 H2616 US TREASURY N/B 2.250 03/31/2024 USD 97.753 5.147 /M N 0.775 Aaa - 06/12/2023 498,540.30 2,288.73 500,829.03

514,000 H2602 US TREASURY N/B 2.000 05/31/2024 USD 97.086 5.126 /M N 0.938 Aaa - 06/12/2023 499,022.04 337.05 499,359.09

2,043,000 Average/Total 1.065 0.633 97.743 5.157 0.613 Aaa - 1,996,898.57 2,625.78 1,999,524.35

Par
Value ML# Issuer

Jun
2023

Jul
2023

Aug
2023

Sep
2023

Oct
2023

Nov
2023

Dec
2023

Jan
2024

Feb
2024

Mar
2024

Apr
2024

May
2024 Total

507,000 H2ZA0 TREASURY BILL - - - 507,000.00 - - - - - - - - 507,000.00

512,000 H2ZA6 TREASURY BILL - - - - - - 512,000.00 - - - - - 512,000.00

510,000 H2616 US TREASURY N/B - - - 5,737.50 - - - - - 515,737.50 - - 521,475.00

514,000 H2602 US TREASURY N/B - - - - - 5,140.00 - - - - - 519,140.00 524,280.00

Year No. of Issues Maturing Coupon Income Principal Due Total Cash Flow % of Portfolio

2023 2 10,877.50 1,019,000.00 1,029,877.50 49.88

2024 2 10,877.50 1,024,000.00 1,034,877.50 50.12

Total 4 21,755.00 2,043,000.00 2,064,755.00 100.00

PAGE 17



ANALYSIS 

June 09, 2023

Fixed Income Portfolio Ladder
Prepared for Altrans | Prepared by Paul Kommer

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY TEN YEAR PRINCIPAL DUE SCHEDULE

Par Value 2,043,000.00 USD Average Offer Price 97.743

Principal Amount 1,996,898.57 USD Average Coupon 1.06

Accrued Interest 2,625.78 USD Average Yield 5.157

Portfolio Value 1,999,524.35 USD Average Modified Duration 0.61

First 12 Months Cash Flow 2,064,755.00 USD Average Maturity 0.633

Average Moody's / S&P Rating Aaa / -

Minimum Maximum Average

Offer Price 97.086 98.640 97.743

Coupon 0.00 2.25 1.06

Yield 5.097 5.259 5.157

Modified Duration 0.27 0.94 0.61

Year
# of

Issues Par Value
% of

Portfolio

2023 2 1,019,000 49.88

2024 2 1,024,000 50.12

Year
# of

Issues Par Value
% of

Portfolio

Total 4 2,043,000 100.00

MATURITY SCHEDULE OPTIONAL CALL SCHEDULE

Years Par Value % Portfolio

0-1 2,043,000 100.00

1-3 0 0.00

3-5 0 0.00

5-10 0 0.00

10-15 0 0.00

15+ 0 0.00

Short Intermediate Long

0-4.99 5-14.99 15+

100.00 0.00 0.00

Call Range
# of

Issues
Par

Value
%

Portfolio

2023 0 0 0.00

Non-Callable 4 2,043,000 100.00

2024-2026 0 0 0.00

2027-2029 0 0 0.00

2030-2032 0 0 0.00

2033+ 0 0 0.00

Total 4 2,043,000 100.00

PAGE 18



U.S. Treasury securities 

What is a U.S. Treasury security? 

A U.S. Treasury security is the most creditworthy investment available, giving you a U.S. government 
guaranteed interest rate with maximum security, selection and liquidity (it can easily be sold for cash). 

When should you consider U.S. Treasury 
securities? 
If you are building a balanced portfolio to help protect you 
during uncertain times and prosper over the long term, consider 
U.S. Treasury securities, which offer high creditworthiness  
and liquidity. 

What are the potential benefits of U.S. 
Treasury securities? 
Ensure your return if you hold the security to maturity 

•  Treasuries are usually issued in three forms in minimum
denominations of $100.

–  Bills, issued in maturities of 4, 13, 26 and 52 weeks,
are sold at a discount to face value. Their investment
return is the difference between the acquisition cost and
the face value.

–  Notes have maturities between 2 and 10 years.
Investors earn a fixed rate of interest until maturity.

–  Bonds have maturities of greater than 10 years.
Investors earn a fixed rate of interest until maturity.

•  The timely payment of interest and principal at maturity is
backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government.

•  You lock in an interest rate for the full term, since most
Treasury securities cannot be called or redeemed before
their final maturity date.

Gain liquidity and tax advantages 

The secondary market for U.S. Treasuries is the most liquid 
fixed income market in the world. 

Interest on U.S. Treasuries is exempt from all state and local 
taxes but is subject to federal tax. 

Diversify your portfolio 

•  The high creditworthiness and investment return of
U.S. Treasury securities make them a vital part of your
investment portfolio.

•  A Treasury security is an especially good choice for a
risk-averse investor.

•  The wide range of maturities in the secondary market
makes it easy to find the maturities and coupon rates
that suit your needs.

Take advantage of inflation-protected U.S. 
Treasury securities 

•  You might consider U.S. Treasury inflation-indexed securities
if you are looking for a high-quality investment that pays
periodic income and allows you to preserve your future
purchasing power.

•  Your principal is indexed to a version of the Consumer
Price Index (CPI), providing you protection against inflation.
If consumer prices rise, the principal amount of the securities
increases, and at maturity, you are paid the inflation-adjusted

This material does not take into account a client’s particular investment objectives, financial situations, or needs and is not intended as a recommendation, offer, or solicitation for the 
purchase or sale of any security or investment strategy. Merrill offers a broad range of brokerage, investment advisory (including financial planning) and other services. There are important 
differences between brokerage and investment advisory services, including the type of advice and assistance provided, the fees charged, and the rights and obligations of the parties. It is 
important to understand the differences, particularly when determining which service or services to select. 

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (also referred to as “MLPF&S” or “Merrill”) makes available certain investment products sponsored, managed, distributed or provided 
by companies that are affiliates of Bank of America Corporation (“BofA Corp.”). MLPF&S is a registered broker-dealer, registered investment adviser, Member SIPC and a wholly owned 
subsidiary of BofA Corp. 
Investment products: 

Are Not FDIC Insured Are Not Bank Guaranteed May Lose Value 
PAGE 19



principal. If consumer prices decrease, you are paid the 
original principal at maturity. 

•  U.S. Treasury inflation-indexed securities pay a fixed rate
of interest semiannually. As this rate is applied to the
adjusted principal, interest payments rise with inflation and
fall with deflation.

•  Inflation adjustments to principal are taxed as interest
in the year in which the adjustments occur, even though
these principal adjustments will not be paid until maturity.
Therefore, U.S. Treasury inflation-indexed securities may
be most appropriate for tax-favored accounts.

Consider zero-coupon U.S. Treasury securities 

•  In addition to coupon-bearing securities, the U.S. Treasury
issues zero-coupon investments. U.S. Treasury STRIPS
(Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal
Securities) offer the same safety as other Treasury securities
but do not make periodic interest payments.

•  In lieu of regular interest payments, STRIPS are priced at a
discount to their face value. The interest accrues and is paid
in a lump sum at maturity. When each STRIP matures, you
receive its face value, which represents your original principal
investment and the interest you earned but did not receive
during the life of the security.

•  Though you do not receive payment until maturity, the
imputed interest is taxable as ordinary income each year.
You may therefore prefer to hold these securities in a
tax-favored account.

•  STRIPS are ideal for investors who do not need current
income but are planning for an investment goal with a
specific future date, such as a child’s college education.

Benefit from the resources of Merrill 

•  Merrill is one of the world’s leading participants in the U.S.
Treasury market.

•  Our fixed income analysts can help you capitalize on
opportunities in specific maturity sectors of the
Treasury market.

•  Since Merrill maintains an active secondary market, you don’t
have to wait for scheduled Treasury auctions to purchase
Treasury securities.

•  Additionally, if you need to liquidate your holdings before
maturity, you may be able to do so in the secondary market
Merrill maintains. The price you receive may be higher or
lower than your original purchase price, based on market
conditions.

What else should you know about U.S. 
Treasury securities? 
•  U.S. Treasury securities are subject to interest rate risk.

If interest rates rise, the market value of your Treasury
investment will decline. While you may be able to liquidate
your investment in the secondary market, you may receive
less than the face value of your investment.

•  As with other securities, the market prices of U.S. Treasury
securities will be subject to current market conditions.
If you sell your securities in the secondary market, the price
that you receive may be higher or lower than your original
purchase price.

Any information presented about tax considerations affecting 
client financial transactions or arrangements is not intended  
as tax advice and should not be relied upon for the purpose  
of avoiding any tax penalties. Merrill, its affiliates and financial 
advisors do not provide legal, tax or accounting advice. You 
should consult your legal and/or tax advisors before making any 
financial decisions. 

How can you get started? 
If you would like to benefit from the safety of a guaranteed interest rate, high creditworthiness and liquidity, talk with your 
Merrill Lynch Wealth Management Advisor. Your Merrill advisor can help you develop customized solutions that fit your 
needs, goals, risk tolerance, investment time frame and liquidity requirements. To learn about other Merrill Lynch Wealth 
Management services, visit ml.com. 

Merrill is a registered trademark of Bank of America Corporation. 

© 2023 Bank of America Corporation. All rights reserved. | MAP5441376 | 207762PM-0323 (ADA)

  To learn about Bank of America’s environmental goals and initiatives, go to bankofamerica.com/environment.  
Leaf icon is a registered trademark of Bank of America Corporation.

PAGE 20



 
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

  
 

  

 
     

 

   
    

 
  

 

 
 

 
    
   

 
 

 
Take advantage of higher 
interest rates for your 
cash balances 

Preferred Deposit® for Merrill clients 

Having available cash for your personal needs can be as important as pursuing your long-term financial 
goals. With Preferred Deposit®, you can help manage your everyday expenses and cash flow, as well as 
your objectives for the future. 

Earn more interest on your cash balances. 
The current annual percentage yield (APY) is 4.76%.1,2 

Preferred Deposit is a bank deposit solution offered through 
eligible Merrill brokerage accounts.3 It may be a smart 
addition to your overall wealth management approach and 
provides the following benefits: 

• Competitive yield. Your money is placed by Merrill into a
deposit account with Bank of America, N.A., where the APY
is currently 4.76%.1,2 This competitive yield can help you optimize
the cash you may need for your goals.

• Security. Preferred Deposit balances held at Bank of America,
N.A. are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC), up to applicable limits. Visit fdic.gov for more
information about FDIC insurance.

• Convenience. You can readily access your Preferred Deposit
balance — through your financial advisor — to quickly and
easily redirect these assets for your personal needs or to take
advantage of other opportunities.

Let us help put Preferred Deposit to work for you. 

Manage for today and plan for tomorrow 

If you have a large amount of cash—after a home sale, 
for example—consider Preferred Deposit. It offers quick access 
to funds, cash flow in the short term and a more competitive 
interest rate than a cash sweep. It can also help you prepare 
for the unexpected, plan for major life events or make 
large purchases. 

Plus, you can access your Preferred Deposit balance and 
performance information within your Merrill account statement, 
so you and your financial advisor will have a consolidated view 
of your total account assets. That way, you can have more 
meaningful discussions and work together to maintain your 
financial strategy. 

Getting started 

The minimum initial deposit for Preferred Deposit is $100,000. 
Thereafter, deposits in whole dollar amounts of $1,000 or more 
and withdrawals in any whole dollar amount may be made by 
calling your financial advisor. Deposit and withdrawal requests 
made by 5 p.m. Eastern will have same-day settlement. 

Contact your Merrill advisor to discuss how Preferred Deposit may fit into your overall financial strategy. 

See next page for additional important information. 
PAGE 21

http://www.fdic.gov


        

  

    

 

  

    

 

 

    

 

 
  

 

 

1 The interest rate is variable and may change at any time. You will not be charged any commissions in connection with your purchase of Preferred Deposit. 
2 Annual Percentage Yield (APY) current as of May 5, 2023, and may have changed. For current information, please speak to an advisor. 
3 Eligible Merrill brokerage accounts for Preferred Deposit: 

• Cash Management Account® (CMA®) 

• CMA® Account for Trusts 

• CMA SubAccount® 

• Endowment Management Account™ (EMA®) 

• EMA II 

• Merrill Edge® Self-Directed and Advisory Center CMA accounts 

• Retail International CMA (ICMA) 

• Certain personal Trust Management Accounts (TMA) 

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (also referred to as “MLPF&S” or “Merrill”) makes available certain investment products sponsored, managed, distributed or provided 
by companies that are affiliates of Bank of America Corporation (“BofA Corp.”). MLPF&S is a registered broker-dealer, registered investment adviser, Member SIPC and a wholly owned 
subsidiary of BofA Corp. 

Banking products are provided by Bank of America, N.A., and affiliated banks, Members FDIC and wholly owned subsidiaries of BofA Corp. 

Investment products: 

Are Not FDIC Insured Are Not Bank Guaranteed May Lose Value 

© 2023 Bank of America Corporation. All rights reserved. | MAP5039210 | FL-03-23-0273.A | 472151PM-0523 | 05/2023 

To learn about Bank of America’s environmental goals and initiatives, go to bankofamerica.com/environment. Leaf icon is a registered trademark of Bank of America Corporation. 

PAGE 22

https://about.bankofamerica.com/en-us/what-guides-us/environmental-sustainability.html?cm_mmc=EBZ-EnterpriseBrand-_-vanity-_-EB01VN00BC_environment-_-NA&bcen=8a6b#fbid=Q1fVqoxoZ8L
http://www.sipc.org


2024 Preliminary Budget

EMERY GO-ROUND

Revenue Anticipated Anticipated Anticipated
Revenue Revenue Revenue

PBID Revenue (0% Increase) (3% Increase) (5% Increase) Notes
PBID Revenue 4,473,627 4,607,835 4,697,308 

District Related Costs (100,552) (102,833) (104,354) 
1.7% of assessment to County Assessor + $24,500 to City for legal and 
administrative fees.

Net PBID 4,373,075  4,505,002  4,592,954  

Non-PBID Revenue
City of Emeryville - General Benefit Contribution 612,888 612,888 612,888 Assumed 12.29% of Total Budget.
City of Emeryville - Emery Go Round Bus Yard (CIP) - - - 
ETMA Billed Revenue 112,000 115,360 117,600 
BGTMA Revenue 41,401 41,401 41,401 
Emery Express Revenue 55,600 55,600 55,600 
Misc. Revenue (interest income, etc.) 1,920 1,920 1,920 
Subtotal Non-PBID Revenues 823,809  827,169  829,409  
Total Revenue 5,196,884  5,332,171  5,422,362  

2024
Expenditures Estimated Proposed Proposed 

Direct Costs Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures ASSUMPTIONS
Bus Leases/Purchases 500,000 Budget allocation for new fleet acquisitions.
Bus Maintenance 231,000 
Operations Contract 2,614,315  Assume level of service remains as is in 2023.   
Fuel 300,000 

Communications 65,863  Annual fees for real-time tracking system, driver radios & automated passenger 
counter's. 

Miscellaneous Operating Costs 10,000  Route guides, bus stop sign replacements, rider alert postings, etc. 
Subtotal Direct Costs 3,721,178  -  -  

Indirect Costs
Professional Services 504,424  Includes all management, accounting, website & legal service contracts.  

Occupancy (Facilities related expenses) 529,200  Site lease, on-site security, video monitoring, utilites, yard maintenance 
expenses. 

Membership & Public Outreach Materials 10,000  Annual Report, Annual Membership Meeting Invitations & Rider Satisfaction 
Survey. 

Pilot Projects and Research 25,000 Allowance for implementation of new transit enhancements.
TMA Insurance 52,080 Commercial, Directors & Officers, Excess Liability & Property Coverage.
Conferences, Meetings, Office Expenses 10,000 Shuttle Operations Workshop, office equipment and expenses, etc.  

Subtotal Indirect Costs 1,130,704  -  -  

Contingency 135,000  Anticipate potential cost overruns due to rising fuel costs and other operating 
cost increases.   

Subtotal Other Costs 135,000  
TOTAL BUDGET/EXPENSES 4,986,882  -  -  
Estimated Balance 210,002  345,289  435,480  

Reserve Balance Summary (2022) 0% Increase 3% Increase 5% Increase
Projected Cash Balance on Dec 31, 2023 4,640,462$           4,640,462$           4,640,462$  
2024 Projected Balance 210,002$   345,289$   435,480$   

Total Projected Cash Balance on Dec 31, 2024 4,850,463$           4,985,750$           5,075,942$  

15% Operating Reserve (per ETMA Policy) 748,032$  748,032$  748,032$  
Total Available Cash Balance on December 31, 2023 4,102,431$          4,237,718$          4,327,910$  

Based on 5% Operating Expense Increase from 2023
2024

Page 1 of 2 PAGE 23



2024 Preliminary Budget

EMERY GO-ROUND

Revenue Anticipated Anticipated Anticipated
Revenue Revenue Revenue

PBID Revenue (0% Increase) (3% Increase) (5% Increase) Notes
PBID Revenue 4,473,627           4,607,835           4,697,308 

District Related Costs (100,552) (102,833) (104,354) 
1.7% of assessment to County Assessor + $24,500 to City for legal and 
administrative fees.

Net PBID 4,373,075        4,505,002        4,592,954          

Non-PBID Revenue
City of Emeryville - General Benefit Contribution

635,990 635,990 635,990 
Assumed 12.29% of Total Budget.

City of Emeryville - Emery Go Round Bus Yard (CIP) - - - 
ETMA Billed Revenue 112,000 115,360 117,600 
BGTMA Revenue 43,366 43,366 43,366 
Emery Express Revenue 58,055 58,055 58,055 
Misc. Revenue (interest income, etc.) 1,920 1,920 1,920 
Subtotal Non-PBID Revenues 851,332 854,692 856,932 
Total Revenue 5,224,406         5,359,694         5,449,885           

2024
Expenditures Estimated Proposed Proposed 

Direct Costs Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures ASSUMPTIONS
Bus Leases/Purchases 500,000 Budget allocation for new fleet acquisitions.
Bus Maintenance 242,000 
Operations Contract 2,738,806            Assume level of service remains as is in 2023.   
Fuel 300,000 
Communications 66,648  Annual fees for real-time tracking system, driver radios & automated 

passenger counter's. 
Miscellaneous Operating Costs 10,000  Route guides, bus stop sign replacements, rider alert postings, etc. 
Subtotal Direct Costs 3,857,454 - - 

Indirect Costs
Professional Services 528,444  Includes all management, accounting, website & legal service contracts.  

Occupancy (Facilities related expenses) 554,400  Site lease, on-site security, video monitoring, utilites, yard maintenance 
expenses. 

Membership & Public Outreach Materials 10,000  Annual Report, Annual Membership Meeting Invitations & Rider Satisfaction 
Survey. 

Pilot Projects and Research 25,000  Allowance for implementation of new transit enhancements. 
TMA Insurance 54,560  Commercial, Directors & Officers, Excess Liability & Property Coverage. 

Conferences, Meetings, Office Expenses 10,000  Shuttle Operations Workshop, office equipment and expenses, etc.   

Subtotal Indirect Costs 1,182,404        - - 
Contingency 135,000  Anticipate potential cost overruns due to rising fuel costs and other 

operating cost increases.   
Subtotal Other Costs 135,000 
TOTAL BUDGET/EXPENSES 5,174,858         - - 
Estimated Balance 49,548 184,836 275,027 

Reserve Balance Summary (2022) 0% Increase 3% Increase 5% Increase
Projected Cash Balance on Dec 31, 2023 4,640,462$         4,640,462$         4,640,462$           
2024 Projected Balance 49,548$           184,836$         275,027$           

Total Projected Cash Balance on Dec 31, 2024 4,690,010$         4,825,297$         4,915,489$           

15% Operating Reserve (per ETMA Policy) 776,229$            776,229$            776,229$  
Total Available Cash Balance on December 31, 2023 3,913,781$        4,049,068$        4,139,260$          

Based on 10% Operating Expense Increase from 2023
2024

Page 2 of 2 PAGE 24



C A L I F O R N I A

P R O F E S S I O N A L  S E R V I C E S  C O N T R A C T

F O R  C I T Y  U S E  O N L Y
Contract No. CIP No. 
Resolution No. Project No. 

REV 06/2020 

SECOND AMENDMENT 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT 
(“Amendment”) is effective as of ____________________ (the “Effective Date”),, by and 
between THE CITY OF EMERYVILLE, a municipal corporation, (“City”) and 
EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION (ETMA) 
(“Contractor”), individually referred to as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

W I T N E S S E T H  T H A T

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor entered into a Professional Services Contract 
dated September 13, 2021 (“Contract”) for the purpose of retaining the services of 
Contractor to provide Paratransit Services to residents of the 94608 zip code; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor entered into a first amendment of the contract on 
July 18, 2022 for the purpose of increasing the contract amount and/or extending the 
termination date of the contract; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor desire to amend the Contract; and 

WHEREAS, the public interest will be served by this Amendment. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 

1. AMENDMENT

The Parties agree to amend the Contract as checked below:

1.1 Exhibit A 

 Exhibit A of the Contract is hereby amended in its entirety and replaced
with Exhibit A-Revision Number;

OR

 Exhibit A of the Contract is hereby amended to include the provisions of
Exhibit A-1, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

PAGE 25



City of Emeryville | Professional Services Contract Amendment 
REV 06/2020 

Page 2 of 3 

1.2 Termination Date 

 The Parties desire to extend the termination date.  Section 1.3 of the
Contract is hereby amended to extend the termination date to JUNE 30,
2024.

1.3 Total Compensation Amount 

 The Parties desire to increase the Total Compensation Amount as set
forth in Section 3.2 of the Contract by SEVEN THOUSAND EIGHT
HUNDRED DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($7,800.00).  The total amount
paid under the Contract as compensation for Services performed and
reimbursement for costs incurred shall not, in any case, exceed ONE
HUNDRED FORTY NINE THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS
AND NO CENTS ($149,800.00).

2. CONTINUING EFFECT OF CONTRACT

Except as amended by this Amendment, all other provisions of the Contract remain in 
full force and effect and shall govern the actions of the Parties under this Amendment.  
From and after the date of this Amendment, whenever the term “Contract” appears in 
the Contract, it shall mean the Contract as amended by this Amendment.  

3. ADEQUATE CONSIDERATION

The Parties hereto irrevocably stipulate and agree that they have each received 
adequate and independent consideration for the performance of the obligations they 
have undertaken pursuant to this Amendment. 

4. SEVERABILITY

If any portion of this Amendment is declared invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable 
by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall continue in full force 
and effect. 

5. WAIVER

The City’s failure to enforce any provision of this Amendment or the waiver in a 
particular instance shall not be construed as a general waiver of any future breach or 
default. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

PAGE 26



City of Emeryville | Professional Services Contract Amendment 
REV 06/2020 

Page 3 of 3 

6. SIGNATURE PAGE TO PROFESSESIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT
SECOND AMENDMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the City and the Contractor have executed this Contract, 
which shall become effective as of the date first written above. 

Approved As To Form: 

City Attorney

Dated:  CITY OF EMERYVILLE 

 City Manager 

Dated:  EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT 
ASSOCIATION (ETMA) 

(Signature) 

Bobby Lee, ETMA Board Chair 

Attach: 
W-9 Form

Attach: 
Business License 

Certificate 

Attach: 
Insurance Certificate 
and Endorsements 

PAGE 27



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Syncromatics Replacement Options 
History/Background 
Emery Go-Round has been using GMV SyncromaƟcs for real-Ɵme, ridership, and on-Ɵme performance 

(OTP) tracking since 2016. The program provides a passenger-facing app and AutomaƟc Passenger 

Counter (APC) integraƟon. Unfortunately, the APC integraƟon has never funcƟoned properly, providing a 

50% variance from the drivers’ manually-tracked ridership. AddiƟonally, issues with their system’s OTP 

tracking has prevented accurate reporƟng. Because SyncromaƟcs’ ridership and OTP reporƟng has had 

regular and ongoing issues, the only accurate funcƟon it provides is real-Ɵme locaƟons.  

As a result, we have reached out to mulƟple vendors to idenƟfy potenƟal replacements for SyncromaƟcs. 

Informa on: 
Features/Benefits Integrated Rider App, Real-Time Monitoring, 

Public and Private Facing OpƟons, push 
noƟficaƟons 

Drawbacks Higher Cost

Other Systems That Use Mountain View Community ShuƩle, Genentech, 
City of Santa Maria, Google 

Pricing: 
Annual Price without APC IntegraƟon Annual Price with APC IntegraƟon 

Year 1 $75,000 ($240 PVPM) $81,120 ($260 PVPM) 

Year 2 $75,000 ($240 PVPM) $81,120 ($260 PVPM) 

Year 3 $77,250 ($248 PVPM) $84,240 ($270 PVPM) 

Informa on: 
Features/Benefits Real-Time Monitoring, Automated Reports, Lower 

Pricing, IntegraƟon with Transit App 

Drawbacks No dedicated passenger app 

Other Systems That Use AC Transit, FAST Transit, VTA 

Pricing: 
Annual Price without APC IntegraƟon Annual Price with APC IntegraƟon 

Year 1 $33,800 ($108 PVPM) + $8,632 setup $47,944 ($154 PVPM) + $8,632 setup 

Year 2 $34,814 ($111 PVPM) $49,382.32 ($160 PVPM) 

Year 3 $35,858.42 ($115 PVPM) $50,863.79 ($163 PVPM) 

PAGE 28



 EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Reference Interviews: 
Upon request, both Tripshot and SwiŌly provided mulƟple references which were interviewed using the 

below quesƟons. Tripshot provided three references for shuƩle-based and smaller transit systems. 

SwiŌly provided three references for larger, municipal transit systems. The references provided glowing 

reviews for both Tripshot and SwiŌly. 

QuesƟons: 

1. Did you face any challenges during the implementation phase? If yes, how were they
resolved?

2. How has the transit software improved your day-to-day operations and efficiency?

3. What specific features of the software have had the most impact on your organization?
4. Have you experienced any technical issues or system downtime? If so, how were they

addressed?
5. How responsive and helpful has the customer support team been in addressing your concerns

or inquiries?
6. Are there any features or functionalities that you feel are missing from the software or could

be improved?
7. What is your overall satisfaction level with the transit software and the service provided by

Tripshot / Swiftly?

Recommenda on: 
Due to the following consideraƟons: features provided, results of the reference interviews and exisƟng 

staff experience with the program it is recommended that the use of the SyncromaƟcs system be 

disconƟnued and Tripshot be implemented in its place. 

Ra onale 
While SwiŌly provides most of the same features that TripShot and SyncromaƟcs provide, it is reliant on 

other systems, such as the Transit App, Google Maps, etc. to provide the informaƟon to passengers. 

While this methodology allows for lower pricing, certain features, such as push noƟficaƟons are lost. 

AddiƟonally, because SwiŌly is reliant on other systems, there are more places in which errors or issues 

can arise. 

TripShot provides all of the same features as SwiŌly and more. It is more of a one-to-one replacement 

for SyncromaƟcs with the addiƟonal ability for drivers to manually track ridership on their tablets should 

issues with the APCs conƟnue/arise. Daniel Oliver has used TripShot with the Mountain View Community 

ShuƩle for 6 years and was responsible for the setup and conƟnued maintenance of the system. Because 

of this there will be less of a learning curve for setup, implementaƟon and troubleshooƟng, which will 

lead to a smoother transiƟon. 

PAGE 29



 EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Transit Software Comparisons 

Transit Systems 
Public Route Systems X X X 

Private Route Systems X 

Connec ng with Passengers 
Integrated Rider App X X 

Push Alerts through Rider 
App 

X X 

GTFS-RT to Transit App,  
Google Maps, etc. 

X X X

Service Alerts through 
GTFS (not push) 

X X X 

Real-Time LocaƟon 
Tracking 

X X X

Passenger Web Interface X X X 

EsƟmated Arrival Times X X X 

Headsign ConnecƟvity X X X 

Repor ng/Performance Tracking 
On Time Performance 
Tracking 

X X X

Driver-Lead Passenger 
CounƟng 

X X 

AutomaƟc Passenger 
Counter (APC) 
CompaƟbility 

X X X

Bike Tracking X X X 

Wheelchair Tracking X X X 

GPS Historical Playback X X X 

Maintenance Tracking X 

Built in DVIRs X 

PAGE 30



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Shuttle Operations Contract 
History/Background 
The Emeryville TMA last went out to bid for shuƩle operaƟons and maintenance in 2012. At that Ɵme, 

MV TransportaƟon was selected and began operaƟons in early 2013. Since the iniƟal agreement there 

have been 4 extensions, with the current set to expire December 31, 2023. 

Since ALTRANS took over the ExecuƟve Directorship of the ETMA, there have been no operaƟonal issues, 

with either MV drivers or management, that have caused concern with the vendor. Likewise, Gray-

Bowen-ScoƩ expressed saƟsfacƟon with MV and did not relay any operaƟonal issues, with either MV 

drivers or management. Because there are no known operaƟonal concerns, the key quesƟon at hand 

with their contract expiring at the end of the year is whether MV TransportaƟon’s pricing is below, at, or 

above compeƟƟve market pricing. 

In order to accommodate a formal Request for Proposal (RFP) process and allow sufficient Ɵme for a 

potenƟal new vendor to be prepared, the ETMA would need to issue the RFP approximately 6 months 

before the expected start date. Because of the Ɵme constraints, at the May 2023 ETMA Board MeeƟng, 

it was suggested to develop a Request for QuotaƟons (RFQ) to understand the compeƟƟve market 

pricing of shuƩle operators. 

Recommenda on 1 
Since there are no known operaƟonal issues with MV TransportaƟon and because, in ALTRANS’ 

experience, MV’s pricing is at or below compeƟtor’s pricing, it is recommended to extend the current 

agreement with MV through 2024. 

Recommenda on 2 
If RecommendaƟon 1 is approved, it is recommended not to issue the RFQ as there would be no intent 

to award the contract to another vendor. Instead, it is recommended that ALTRANS research and contact 

other shuƩle/transit systems who recently put our RFPs, parƟcularly those that MV submiƩed proposals 

for, and request informaƟon on how MV’s pricing compared to their compeƟtors. This alternaƟve will 

provide context for MV’s pricing and help determine whether or not the ETMA should issue an RFP for 

2025 service, based on pricing. 

Recommenda on 3 
It is recommended that the ETMA uƟlize the next year to perform passenger surveys and engage in 

short, medium, and long term strategic planning. The passenger surveys will help idenƟfy any 

operaƟonal issues that have not been conveyed to management as well as provide informaƟon on how 

the program is used and how it could/should change. The strategic planning will set a course for where 

the Board of Directors sees the program in 2 years, 5 years and beyond. These plans could include 

transiƟoning to clean air vehicles, vehicle ownership or any other items that may affect the shuƩle 

operaƟons provider. 

PAGE 31



EMERYVILLE TRANSPORTATION MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION 

Vehicle Retirement and Spare Part Utilization 

Background 
The ETMA’s standard policy has been that shuƩles are planned to be reƟred aŌer 7 years of service. 

Because of the pandemic and the subsequent reducƟon in service, the uƟlizaƟon of the shuƩles were 

spread out throughout the fleet, which caused each shuƩle to accumulate fewer miles. This allowed the 

standard 7-year reƟrement policy to be extended. 

The Emery Go-Round fleet currently has 26 shuƩles with producƟon years ranging from 2013 to 2019. 

The program uƟlizes 15 shuƩles per weekday, which leaves 11 shuƩles to serve as spares. ALTRANS met 

with the MV OperaƟons and Maintenance team to discuss the current fleet condiƟon. In this discussion, 

5 shuƩles were idenƟfied to be high in mileage, high in maintenance costs, overdue for replacement, 

and rarely used.  

Recommenda on 
It is recommended to re re the 5 iden fied shu les and allow MV to remove, store, and u lize any, 

and all parts for the maintenance and upkeep of the current Emery Go-Round fleet.  

MV has confirmed that because these 5 shuƩles are rarely used, there would be no negaƟve impact to 

operaƟons and the fleet would maintain a healthy 6:15 spare raƟo. 

Ra onale 
MV has requested permission to uƟlize parts from these 5, unused, shuƩles to repair the remaining, 

used shuƩles. By uƟlizing the parts in these 5 shuƩles, maintenance costs and shuƩle down-Ɵme will be 

reduced because the parts will be readily available. 

For example, MV has relayed that in a given year, up to 10 seats need to be replaced due to vandalism or 

regular usage. Each seat costs approximately $1900 with shipping and can take up to 2 weeks to be 

delivered and installed. If MV were to remove, store and uƟlize all 100 potenƟal seats (5 shuƩles x 20 

seats/shuƩle), that would save the ETMA up to $190,000 over the course of the remaining vehicles’ 

lifespans. 

MV has stated that they would be interested in storing one of the reƟred shuƩles at their San Leandro 

terminal to use as a storage facility for all of the Emery Go-Round parts that they remove. 

In May 2023, the board requested that ALTRANS look into potenƟally selling the unused shuƩles. AŌer 

speaking with MV’s Maintenance Manager and Roni, the sale of the shuƩles does not outweigh the 

potenƟal maintenance savings. When Roni aƩempted to sell some shuƩles a few years ago, she 

discovered that she would only get approximately $3000 for each shuƩle. Due to the large size of the 

vehicles, these shuƩles are not highly sought aŌer and are difficult to sell. Because of these reasons, it is 

not recommended to aƩempt the sell the unused shuƩles.  

PAGE 32



Fleet: June 2023

Bus Number Year Make/Model VIN Type Mileage GPS Emitter Planned 
Retirement Year

683 2013 INTERNATIONAL UC 5WEASAAN4DJ270683 CUTAWAY 188,951 2020
065 2014 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAANXEH487065 CUTAWAY 175,748 2021
066 2014 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAAN1EH487066 CUTAWAY 148,439 2021
067 2014 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAAN3EH487067 CUTAWAY 166,985 2021
068 2014 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAAN5EH487068 CUTAWAY 161,675 2022
207 2014 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAAN8DH417207 CUTAWAY 141,701 2022
208 2014 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAANXDH417208 CUTAWAY 136,873 2022
215 2015 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAAN3FH726215 CUTAWAY 117,474 2023
216 2015 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAAN5FH726216 CUTAWAY 121,193 2023
220 2015 INTERNATIONAL 3200 5WEASAAN7FH726220 CUTAWAY 150,970 2023
649 2016 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8L0GH268649 CUTAWAY 116,710 2025
650 2016 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8L7GH268650 CUTAWAY 108,018 2025
651 2016 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8L9GH268651 CUTAWAY 130,273 Yes 2025
920 2016 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8L3GH282920 CUTAWAY 158,821 2024
921 2016 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8L3GH282921 CUTAWAY 120,730 Yes 2024
922 2016 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8L3GH282922 CUTAWAY 150,017 2024
696 2017 IC CORPORATION RC505 5WEASC8N9HH514696 CUTAWAY 119,917 Yes 2025
697 2017 IC CORPORATION RC505 5WEASC8N0HH514697 CUTAWAY 107,236 Yes 2026
698 2017 IC CORPORATION RC505 5WEASC8N2HH514698 CUTAWAY 123,072 2026

8698 2018 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8N6JH578698 CUTAWAY 102,870 Yes 2026
8699 2018 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8N8JH578699 CUTAWAY 105,213 Yes 2027
8700 2018 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8N0JH578700 CUTAWAY 87,314 Yes 2027
8701 2018 INTERNATIONAL 4300 5WEASC8N2JH578701 CUTAWAY 86,488 Yes 2027
751 2019 INTERNATIONAL PC505 5WEASC8N3KH400751 CUTAWAY 59,095 Yes 2028
752 2019 INTERNATIONAL PC505 5WEASC8N5KH400752 CUTAWAY 56,623 Yes 2028
753 2019 INTERNATIONAL PC505 5WEASC8N7KH400753 CUTAWAY 44,972 Yes 2028

628 2013 INTERNATIONAL UC 5WEXWSKK6DH044628 CUTAWAY 167,045
938 2016 FORD MOTOR COMPANY F550 1FDGF5GT2GEA51938 CUTAWAY 75,181

743 2016 DODGE CARA SHUTTLE 2C7WDGBG3GR313743 CUTAWAY 39,432
591 2007 DODGE SPRI WD8PE746475132591 CUTAWAY 93,529

West Berkeley

8 to Go

Emery Go-Round

PAGE 33


	ETMA Ridership Audit.pdf
	Sheet1

	Preferred Deposit 5-21-2023.pdf
	Take advantage of higher interest rates for your cash balances
	Preferred Deposit® for Merrill clients
	Earn more interest on your cash balances.
	Manage for today and plan for tomorrow
	Getting started



	Preferred Deposit 5-21-2023.pdf
	Take advantage of higher interest rates for your cash balances
	Preferred Deposit® for Merrill clients
	Earn more interest on your cash balances.
	Manage for today and plan for tomorrow
	Getting started



	2024 ETMA Preliminary Budget.pdf
	2024 5% Prelim Budget
	2024 10% Prelim Budget

	Equipment List EMTA 05-12-2023.pdf
	Sheet1




